
 

LMCHD REGULAR BOARD 
MEETING 

September 13, 2021 – 7:00 P.m. 
 

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order remains in effect, 
the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District (LMCHD) Board Room will be closed to the public. During this 
period of time, the LMCHD Board of Directors has arranged for members of the public to observe and address the 
meeting telephonically.  

 
TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE: Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (310) 372-7549, CONFERENCE CODE #975838.  
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at http://www.lmchd.org/ 

 
MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED TELEPHONICALLY VIA ZOOM 

      Dial:  669-900-9128 US (San Jose) Meeting ID:  870 8986 6152 Passcode 12345 

 
 

 

 
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 1 
 

 
 

1 
 
 
 

MINUTES  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

LOS MEDANOS COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT  
  Monday, August 9, 2021 – 7:00 PM   

 
  

   
1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04pm.  
Roll Call   
Present: Directors: Young, Mason, Strong, Marsh, Fountain  
Absent: None  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Director Fountain led in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 
 

3. LMCHD MISSION: LMCHD identifies health disparities among District 
residents and contributes to solutions – LMCHD VISION: LMCHD is 
cultivating a community in which good health may flourish for all District 
residents – Director Linda Strong read the Mission Statement. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Non-Agenda Items (3 minutes/individual) – None 

 
5. HONORING OF ED HAWKINS – The board of directors were advised that Ed 

Hawkins will be receiving a golden tool set and certificate, for his hard work and 
dedication in the community garden. The Executive Director requested for a vote to 
approve the honoring of Ed Hawkins.  

 

   A motion was made to approve the honoring award for Ed Hawkins by Director 
Marsh, seconded by Director Mason. The award was approved.   

AYES: Directors: Young, Mason, Strong, Marsh, Fountain 
 
 

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
6.1 18 Reasons – Sarah Nelson 

 
The board and staff were presented with information regarding Sarah Nelson’s 
nonprofit cooking school. The main focus is healthy after school nourishments for 
children and families. In the summer she partnered with First 5 and Pittsburg 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 2 
 

 
 

2 
 
 
 

Unified School District to offer hands on nutrition education and weekly grocery 
deliveries to low-income families. The work provided is aligned with Los 
Medanos mission.  The school has been able to engage virtually due to the 
pandemic and came up with creative ways to cook on zoom. The program 
previously would be in person and onsite serving more than one hundred people 
or more after school and throughout the community.  
 
 
However, due to the program’s success and summer engagement, a fall program 
is currently being planned. Director Marsh inquired on the number of families 
being served. The director was advised when in person between 100-400 families 
are served. She also confirmed if the “protos” are from local farms, which Ms. 
Nelson confirmed they partner with local farmers markets. Director Young asked 
if the program is being gaged for long term impact. She was advised by Ms. 
Nelson surveys are conducted to determined impact. In conclusion, Director 
Marsh asked what the total cost for running the program and was advised the 
program has a three-thousand-dollar budget and that covers food and staffing 
costs.  

 
Items listed under the Consent Calendar include reviewed reports and recommendations and are 
acted upon by one motion of the Board. Any item included under the Consent Calendar may be 
pulled for discussion and action separate from the Consent Calendar by any member of the Board or 
any member of the audience.  

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR - Action No. 210123 

7.1 Minutes – Regular Meeting of July 12, 2021 
7.2 Minutes – Special Meeting of July 16, 2021 
7.3 Receive and File Financial Report 

§ Balance Sheet as of June 2021 
§ Credit Card Charges June 2021 
• Cash Disbursements June 2021 
• Credit Card Statement June 2021 
• Bank and Investment Balances 

 

    A motion was made to approve the consent calendar by Director Mason, seconded 
by   Director Marsh. The consent calendar was approved.   

AYES: Directors: Young, Mason, Strong, Marsh, Fountain 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
 

3 
 
 
 

 
 

8. REGULAR AGENDA AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

8.1 Review/Approve Program Committee recommendation to approve funding for "A More 
Excellent Way Baby Shower Program” in the amount of $10,000 – Lucretia Shaw 
 
A recommendation to approve funding in the amount of ten thousand dollars was presented 
by Community Outreach Specialist Lucretia Shaw. She announced the time and location of 
the baby shower and provided a breakdown of the budget. The board discussed the number of 
individuals to be served by this event, specially 3000. The board expressed concern that in 
previous years, the number of individuals served was closer to 300 and inquired about this 
discrepancy. Board directed to confirm number of anticipated participants. Further, Director 
Strong requested that more information be obtained on the peer counseling trainings and 
reports, and that receipts and documentation be legible and received thirty days after the 
event. Director Mason agreed with Director Strong’s remarks. 
 
 

    A motion was made to approve the funding by Director Strong, seconded by 
Director Mason. The funding was approved.   

AYES: Directors: Young, Mason, Strong, Marsh, Fountain 
 
 

8.2 Review/Approve General Liability Insurance Policy. – Lamar Thorpe   
 
Executive Director Thorpe presented the proposed general liability insurance to the board 
along with recommendations from legal. There was discussion by the board regarding the 
insurance company and the third-party provider. Executive Director explained that everything 
was still the same in regard to the plan, insurance carrier and third-party provider. The board 
of directors expressed that before any approval they would like to see documentation 
confirming the county’s certificate of coverage and compare the current and proposed 
contracts side by side. Executive Director agreed to follow up on those items.  

A motion was made to postpone the approval of the General Liability Insurance 
policy by Director Strong, seconded by Director Marsh. The motion was approved.   

AYES: Directors: Young, Strong, Marsh, Fountain 

NOES: Directors: Mason 
 

8.3 Review/Approve attendance at CSDA annual conference. 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 4 
 

 
 

4 
 
 
 

The board discussed the CSDA annual conference and associated costs. Executive Director 
Thorpe explained that he is not authorized to overspend on budget items including 
conferences. Therefore, he requested authorization expend funds for the CSDA training for 
board and staff to trigger a budget adjustment later. The board of directors and the Executive 
Director discussed the history of trainings and the staff’s timeline of the previous attendance 
prior to the pandemic. Director Marsh proposed if we can come up with a future budget 
adjustment overall for training, it was explained that that option will come later during a 
future finance meeting.  
 
A motion was made to authorize Executive Director Thorpe to approve expenditures for the 
CSDA conference for all board members and staff by Director Marsh and seconded by 
Director Strong. 

AYES: Directors: Young, Strong, Marsh, Fountain 

ABSTAIN: Directors: Mason 
 

8.4 Review the yearly committee board meeting schedule.  
 

The board of directors discussed monthly committee meetings; Director Strong expressed 
interest to have less meetings in the event there was a light agenda. The Executive Director 
agreed per the by-laws committees must have regular meeting schedule that is published at 
the regular board meetings. Executive Director Thorpe further explained that it is the chair of 
each committee who has the prerogative to cancel a meeting if he/she deems fit if there’s 
transparency to when the meetings will be held and/or cancelled. Furthermore, this will allow 
needed flexibility in the future for vacations and holiday scheduling for the board. Director 
Linda Strong advised that the Programs Committee meeting is set for the third Tuesday of 
every month.  
 

 
9. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

 
The Board of Directors received a report regarding District activities. The executive director 
updated the board that the security company fixed ongoing issue related to security cameras and 
key fobs. Key fob malfunction is still an ongoing issue but is currently being addressed by the 
security company. The process for meetings is being scheduled with our grantees for the month 
of August. A feedback questionnaire was sent out with the site visit request to gage how we can 
improve our processes. A small concern for some grantee was the in-person check delivery 
process. Director Young inquired about replacing the physical building keys. The executive 
director explained that updated the key can be done but after ADT resolved key fob issues. 
Director Marsh asked if the same alarm company is covering the barn and if so, does it alert 
Director Young’s house or his home. The executive director explained that the camera issues 
with the security company were related to the office security system not the barn. In conclusion 
the system will be updated altogether with current responder’s names once fully repaired and 
restored. 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 5 
 

 
 

5 
 
 
 

 
Director Marsh also inquired on the grant searches related healthy food and nutrition. Executive 
Director Thorpe expressed that looking for those grants is in Community Outreach Specials 
Cisneros’ scope of work and that he would update on any potential grants. Director Strong 
asked how many site visits are scheduled and for what cycle. Per Community Outreach 
Specialist Shaw, the current site visit schedule is for the summer grants programs. 

 
10. BOARD AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
Director Marsh announced she will reach out to “People Who Care” for the award next month. 
She has scheduled to meet with Connie to get further information about the program. Director 
Young requested clarification regarding which meeting, Director March said September. 

 
11. UPCOMING PUBLIC, COMMUNITY AND CIVIC EVENTS 

 
Director Strong announced the Veterans event, which was schedule for August 14, 2021, at 
5:00 pm and requested Executive Director Thorpe attend. Director Young announced Director 
Marsh and Strong attended Literacy Program kickoff event for the City of Pittsburg. She is 
hoping the District can partner with the program particularly to engage and bring awareness to 
the ethnic groups. Director Youth will bring updates for the next meeting. Executive Director 
Thorpe advised he attended the Aspire summer program and they put on an amazing show and 
the staff was really dedicated. Director Young mentioned Aspire will be doing another event 
called “Neverland” in a few weeks and will get the date. Director Marsh believes it will be 
cancelled due to the pandemic. 
 
Director Marsh also did announce there will be two more events this month and the police have 
a survey going around for the “Public Safety Committee” and everyone is encouraged to fill out 
the survey regarding  police engagement for the community.  

  
          Events: 
 
          Pittsburg Downtown Car Show: August 26, 2021, between 6:00 pm and 8:00 pm 
          Cars In the Park at Buchanan: August 28, 2021.   
             
  
 

12.  SUGGESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Director Young suggested the Pittsburg Police Department needed support for P.A.L. and 
would like them to present to give more information. The topic of community events was 
discussed regarding all staff and the Executive Director to attend for the future to ensure 
connections are being made within the community. 

 
13.  ADJOURNMENT 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 6 
 

 
 

6 
 
 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 
8:31pm.     
 
            

MINUTES 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

LOS MEDANOS COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
Monday, August 23, 2021 

5:30pm – Via Zoom 
  

 
14. Call to Order/ Roll Call 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
Roll Call 

 
Present:  Directors:  Mason, Fountain Young, Strong, Cromartie  
Absent:  Directors:  None 
 

 
15. Public Comments – (3 minutes/individual) – None 

 
16. Announcement and Adjournment to Closed Sessions 

 
a) Conference with Labor Negotiator (Gov. Code, § 54957.6.) 
      Name of District Negotiator to Attend Closed Session: Pat Young 
      Unrepresented Employee: Lamar Thorpe, Executive Director 

 
b) Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Gov. Code, § 54957.) 
       Title: Executive Director 

 
17. Adjournment of Closed Sessions  

 
The Closed Session was adjourned at 7:00pm and the Finance meeting commenced. 

 
18.  Resume Open Meeting –  Report Action of Closed Session  

 
The meeting was never resumed, and a special meeting will be held on 9/9/21. 
 

19. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Executive Assistant and Board Clerk", 
assigning an Hourly Rate and Range, and classifying as Exempt Employee. 
 

20. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Administrative Assistant and Deputy Board 
Clerk", assigning an Hourly Rate and Range, and classifying as Exempt Employee. 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 7 
 

 
 

7 
 
 
 

 
21. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Public Health Outreach Manager (or 

Associate) for Grants, Partnerships, and Contracts", assigning an Hourly Rate and Range, and 
classifying as Exempt Employee.  
 

22. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct 
Services and Special Initiatives", assigning an Hourly Rate and Range, and classifying as Exempt 
Employee.  
 

23. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Public Health Outreach Manager ( or 
Associate) for Healthy Food Nutrition", assigning an Hour Rate and Range, and classifying as 
Exempt Employee. 
 

24. Resolution approving new Class Specification for "Garden and Facilities Monitor", assigning an 
Hourly Rate and Range, and classifying as Exempt Employee. 
 

25. Resolution approving an update to employee sick leave policy.  
 

26. Resolution approving an update to employee vacation policy.  
 

27. Contract with Voler Strategic Advisors. 
 

28. Adjournment 

 
___________________      ___________________ 
Sequoia Tomahn       Lee Mason 
Recording Secretary        Board Secretary/Treasurer 
 
              
              
              
              
   

 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 8 
 

 
 

8 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
See Financial Documents – Separate Attachment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 9 
 

 
 

9 
 
 
 

 

      

                      
    RESOLUTION NO. 210124 

 
APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR PART-TIME “EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT AND 

BOARD CLERK”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY RATE AND RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS 
EXEMPT POSITION. 

 
WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well-qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, administrative services play a key role in supporting LMCHD’s public health 
outreach services and initiatives;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$45,757.60, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, for internal equity purposes the recommended hourly rate for the Executive 
Assistant and Board Clerk will be determined after financial analysis is complete;  
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that reduces the current 
funding allocation of $45,757.60 by $6,482.27 totaling $39,245.33; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Executive Assistant and Board Clerk will be classified as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Executive Assistant and Board Clerk, 
attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and added to the LMCHD Classification 
System; 
 
Section 2. The Executive Assistant and Board Clerk Classification is hereby assigned an hourly 
rate (Exhibit 1);  
 
Section 3. The Executive Assistant and Board Clerk Classification is hereby assigned as exempt;  
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 10 
 

 
 

10 
 
 
 

Section 4. The Executive Assistant and Board Clerk Classification is capped at 20 working hours 
per week; and 
 
Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to prepare appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-22 
fiscal year budget. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 11 
 

 
 

11 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Executive Assistant and Board Clerk 
 
Job Description  
 
To provide administrative support to the Executive Director of LMCHD by carrying out various 
administrative duties and special projects as needed. This position requires a high level of organizational, 
communication and technological skills, as well as broad knowledge and the ability to anticipate, 
prioritize, multi-task, and self-direct.  

Job Responsibilities 

• Governance and internal communication support: Prepare, assemble, and distribute Board of 
Directors meeting agendas and supporting documentation; finalize meeting minutes; maintain 
meeting history files, director attendance records and databases; monitor and enforce deadlines 
for upcoming meeting agenda items. ***This will all be done in accordance with public 
transparency laws including but not limited to the Ralph M. Brown Act and Public Records Act. 
*** Type and sometimes compose correspondence to external and internal audiences for 
executive review and signature. Create organizational charts, presentations, and other material for 
internal or external use. Documents may involve complex layouts, various fonts, graphics, 
columns, charts, labels, and mail merge. 

• Screen incoming communication: Answer and manage incoming telephone calls. Monitor, 
screen, respond to, and distribute incoming correspondence including email communications. 

• Meeting management: Coordinate multiple calendars to manage recurring and individual 
meetings. Includes scheduling conference rooms, meetings, catering, and travel arrangements. 
Assist in managing calendars to ensure sufficient time between meetings to meet multiple 
obligations in varying locations. May be asked to attend meetings with executive and take 
minutes. 

• Oversea general office and administrative duties: Effectively manage the administrative 
workflow office administrative assistant and deputy board secretary. Tasks include photocopying, 
filing, faxing, and distribution of correspondence; notifying facilities department when office 
equipment in executive area requires maintenance; accurately preparing and submitting expense 
reports; scheduling conferences, trainings, and webinars as needed; keeping executives well 
informed of upcoming commitments and responsibilities; prioritizing conflicting needs; adhering 
to deadlines, handling matters expediently, and proactively following through on tasks and 
projects to successful completion. 
 

Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• Supervises 1 administrative assistant/deputy board secretary position. 
• May support human resources tasks and elections process; liaison with LMCHD accountant, 

booker, auditor and/or other outside LMCHD contractors.  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 12 
 

 
 

12 
 
 
 

• Other duties as assigned.  
 

Reporting 

This position reports directly to the executive director.  

Qualifications  

• Minimum 3 to 5 years of experience required. 
• College training, work-related experience, or completion of related business courses in office 

procedures, filing, data entry, and word processing. 
• At least 2 to 3 years of experience in a business, community-based organization and/or public 

agency office environment. 
• Advanced MS Office Skills. Proficiency or understanding of DocuSign, MailChimp, and 

CANVA, preferred but not required.  
• Excellent use of grammar and spelling. 
• Ability to produce accurate, neat, and legible documents. 
• Excellent attention to detail and ability to proofread. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Working knowledge of laser printers, copiers, and fax machines. 
•  Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

 
Hourly Range and Schedule 

$27.96 - $34.30 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is generally at Step 1.  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
$27.96 $29.43 $30.97 $32.60 $34.30 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 13 
 

 
 

13 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 210125 
 

APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR “ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT AND 
DEPUTY CLERK”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY RATE AND RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS AN 

EXEMPT POSITION. 
 

WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well-qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, administrative services play a key role in supporting LMCHD’s public health 
outreach services and initiatives;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$22,982.80, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, for internal equity purposes the recommended hourly rate for the Administrative 
Assistant and Deputy Clerk;  
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that increases the current 
funding allocation of $22,982.80 by $2,945.45 totaling $25,928.25; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Assistant and Deputy Clerk will be classified as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Administrative Assistant and Deputy 
Clerk, attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and added to the LMCHD 
Classification System; 
 
Section 2. The Administrative Assistant and Deputy Clerk Classification is hereby assigned an 
hourly rate (Exhibit 1); 
 
Section 3. The Administrative Assistant and Deputy Clerk Classification is hereby assigned as 
exempt;  
 
Section 4. The Administrative Assistant and Deputy Clerk Classification is capped at 20 working 
hours per week; and 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 14 
 

 
 

14 
 
 
 

Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to prepare appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-22 
fiscal year budget. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 15 
 

 
 

15 
 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Administrative Assistant and Deputy Board Clerk 
 
Job Description  
 
To provide general administrative office and board support including general accounting functions like 
initiating payments, reimbursements, and expenditures. This position requires strong organizational, 
communication, and technological skills.  

Job Responsibilities 

• General office duties: Tasks include photocopying, filing, faxing, and distribution of 
correspondence; notifying facilities department when office equipment in office area requires 
maintenance; accurately preparing and submitting expense reports; and maintains and orders 
office supplies and equipment.  

• Screen incoming communication: Answer and manage incoming telephone calls. Monitor, 
screen, respond to, and distribute incoming correspondence including email communications. 

• Finance support: Initiate financial approvals for payments, reimbursements, and expenditures 
for all departments. Maintain and track all approvals until final disbursement. 

• Facilities usage: Maintains, monitors, and schedules all conferences room spaces for meetings 
and general use by the public including outside organizations.  

• Governance and internal communication support: Prepare, assemble, and distribute Board of 
Directors subcommittee meeting agendas and supporting documentation; finalize meeting 
minutes; maintain meeting history files, director attendance records and databases; monitor and 
enforce deadlines for upcoming meeting agenda items. ***This will all be done in accordance 
with public transparency laws including but not limited to the Ralph M. Brown Act and Public 
Records Act. *** Serve as Deputy Clerk.  
 

Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• May support chair of financial committee, REAL Committee, and board treasurer on related 
matters. 

• Other duties as assigned.  
 

Reporting 

This position reports directly to the executive assistant.  

Qualifications  

• Minimum 2 to 3 years of experience required.  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 16 
 

 
 

16 
 
 
 

• Some college/technical training, work-related experience, or completion of related business 
courses in office procedures, filing, data entry, and word processing. 

• At least 2 to 3 years of experience in a business/public agency office environment. 
• Advanced MS Office Skills. Proficiency or understanding of DocuSign, MailChimp, CANVA, 

preferred but not required.  
• Excellent use of grammar and spelling. 
• Ability to produce accurate, neat, and legible documents. 
• Excellent attention to detail and ability to proofread. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Working knowledge of laser printers, copiers, and fax machines. 
•  Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

 
Hourly Range and Schedule 

$21.47 - $26.49 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is determined by experience.  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 4 
$21.47 $22.59 $23.77 $25.02 $26.49 

 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 17 
 

 
 

17 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 210126 
 

APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR PART-TIME “PUBLIC HEALTH OUTREACH 
MANAGER for GRANTS AND PARTNERSHIPS”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY RATE AND 

RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS AN EXEMPT POSITION. 
 

WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well-qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has been committed streamlining and simplifying the grants and district 
sponsored programs processes;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD recognizes the unique responsibility ensuring that all public dollars, 
whether through grants, partnerships and/or contractors are used for their intended purposes; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$22,982.80, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, for internal equity purposes the recommended hourly rate for the Public Health 
Outreach Manager for Grants and Partnerships;  
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that increases the current 
funding allocation of $22,982.80 by $9,052.43 totaling $32.035.23; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Health Outreach Manager for Grants and Partnerships will be classified 
as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Public Health Outreach Manager for 
Grants and Partnerships attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and added to the 
LMCHD Classification System; 
 
Section 2. The Public Health Outreach Manager for Grants and Partnerships Classification is 
hereby assigned an hourly rate (Exhibit 1);  
 
Section 3. The Public Health Outreach Manager for Grants and Partnerships Classification is 
hereby assigned as exempt;  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 18 
 

 
 

18 
 
 
 

Section 4. The Public Health Outreach Manager Classification is capped at 20 working hours per 
week; and 
 
Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to make appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-
22fiscal year budget.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 19 
 

 
 

19 
 
 
 

 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

 
Public Health Manager - Grants, Partnerships  
 
Job Description  

To provide support and management for LMCHD’s grantmaking and district sponsored programs 
processes. Position requires a high level of organizational, communication and technological skills, as 
well as broad knowledge and the ability to anticipate, prioritize, multi-task, and self-direct. 

Job Responsibilities 

• Oversee Grantmaking and District Sponsored Programs Process: Plan and execute the 
overall grant and district sponsored programs processes in coordination with Executive Director, 
finance team, grants committee chair, legal team, and LMCHD staff. Support program staff in 
researching funding opportunities; manage applications, award letters, grant agreements, and 
other documents; manage timelines and deliverables; track grantee and sponsorship results; assist 
grant and sponsorship applicants and grantees as needed; coordinate site visits; document 
payments and expenditures; prepare progress reports; ensure compliance with grant and 
sponsorship regulations; review grant proposals and sponsorship workplans; and optimize the 
grant administration process. 

• Communications: Compose correspondence to external and internal audiences for executive 
review and signature. Create presentations and other material for internal or external use. 
Documents may involve complex layouts, various fonts, graphics, columns, charts, labels, and 
mail merge. 

• Governance: Prepare, assemble, and distribute meeting agenda item updates and supporting 
documentation for the Program and Grant Committees; maintain meeting history files; meet 
deadlines for upcoming meeting agenda items; coordinate calendar to manage recurring 
committee meetings; may be asked to attend additional committee and Board of Directors 
meetings ***This will all be done in accordance with public transparency laws including but not 
limited to the Ralph M. Brown Act and Public Records Act. ***  

• Community outreach: Build and improve community engagement with current and new partner 
relationships to develop and improve availably of and access to programs for all residents of 
LMCHD, with a focus on reducing the health disparities. Coordinating with district sponsored 
program partners and providing support with marketing, events, site visits, meetings, required 
reporting, and some internal administrative support. 

Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• Assist in updating content on the organization’s website and social media platforms. 
Reporting 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 20 
 

 
 

20 
 
 
 

Qualifications  

• Minimum 3 to 5 years of experience required. 
• College training, work-related experience, or completion of related business courses in office 

procedures, filing, data entry, and word processing. 
• At least 2 to 3 years of experience in a business, community-based organization and/or public 

agency office environment. 
• Advanced MS Office Skills. Proficiency or understanding of DocuSign, MailChimp, CANVA, 

preferred but not required.  
• Excellent use of grammar and spelling. 
• Ability to produce accurate, neat, and legible documents. 
• Excellent attention to detail and ability to proofread. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Working knowledge of laser printers, copiers, and fax machines. 
• Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Creative and critical thinking skills 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

Hourly Range and Schedule 

$27.96 - $34.30 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is determined by experience. 

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
$27.96 $29.43 $30.97 $32.60 $34.30 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 21 
 

 
 

21 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 210127 
 

APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR PART-TIME “PUBLIC HEALTH OUTREACH 
ASSISTANT FOR DIRECT SERVICES AND SPEICAL INITIATIVES”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY 

RATE AND RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS EXEMPT POSITION. 
 

WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well-qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has been committed to public health initiatives in the area of sexual 
health, healthy aging, mental health and more; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD recognizes the unique responsibility to provide critical healthcare services 
to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$22,982.80, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, for internal equity purposes the recommended hourly rate for the Public Health 
Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives;  
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that increases the current 
funding allocation of $22,982.80 by $1,671.74 totaling $24,654.54; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives will 
be classified as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Public Health Outreach Assistant for 
Direct Services and Special Initiatives attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and 
added to the LMCHD Classification System; 
 
Section 2. The Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives 
Classification is hereby assigned an hourly rate (Exhibit 1);  
 
Section 3. The Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives 
Classification is hereby assigned as exempt; 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 22 
 

 
 

22 
 
 
 

Section 4. The Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives 
Classification is capped at 20 working hours per week; and 
 
Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to make appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-22 
fiscal year budget.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 23 
 

 
 

23 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Public Health Outreach Assistant for Direct Services and Special Initiatives 
 
Job Description  
 
To provide public health outreach, support, and education to residents in the areas of sexual health, 
healthy aging, behavioral health, COVID-19, and other special initiatives. 

Job Responsibilities 

•  Public Health Initiatives: Represents LMCHD in administering, developing and/or 
implementing current and/or new public health initiatives that increase LMCHD’s visibility 
within the surrounding community; and nurtures new and current relationships with collaborative 
partners. 

• Community Outreach: Oversees the development and distribution of LMCHD’s monthly 
newsletter and associated platforms (i.e. Constant Contact). Maintains a calendar of related 
outreach activities, including community events, workshops, appearances, and other outreach 
opportunities. 

• Digital Media: Updates the LMCHD’s website and social media platforms on a regular basis. 
Updates can include but not limited to current public health related events, national and statewide 
public health information, and health resources. 

• Budgeting: Assist executive director, in consultation with Programs Committee, in preparing 
annual programming budget.  

• Governance: Prepare, assemble, and distribute Board of Directors subcommittee meeting 
agendas and supporting documentation; finalize meeting minutes; maintain meeting history files, 
director attendance records and databases; monitor and enforce deadlines for upcoming meeting 
agenda items. ***This will all be done in accordance with public transparency laws including but 
not limited to the Ralph M. Brown Act and Public Records Act.  

Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• Support Public Health Associate 
• Other duties as assigned.  

Reporting 

This position reports directly to Grants and Partnership Associate.  

Qualifications  

• Minimum 2 to 3 years of experience required. 
• Some college/technical training and work-related experience. 
• At least 2 to 3 years of experience in a community-based organizations and/or public agency 

environment. 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 24 
 

 
 

24 
 
 
 

• Advanced MS Office Skills. Proficiency or understanding of DocuSign, MailChimp, CANVA, 
preferred but not required.  

• Excellent use of grammar and spelling. 
• Excellent attention to detail and ability to proofread. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Working knowledge of laser printers, copiers, and fax machines. 
• Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

Hourly Range and Schedule 

$21.47 - $26.49 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is determined by experience.  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 4 
$21.47 $22.59 $23.77 $25.02 $26.49 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 25 
 

 
 

25 
 
 
 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 210128 
 

APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR FULL-TIME “PUBLIC HEALTH OUTREACH 
MANGER FOR HEALTHY FOOD AND NUTRITION”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY RATE AND 

RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS AN EXEMPT POSITION. 
 

WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has been committed to the nutritional health and well-being of community 
residents;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD recognizes that many communities within the district’s boundaries suffer 
from food insecurity, access to healthy food options, and high rates of obesity and diabetes rates;  
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$22,982.80, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that increases the current 
funding allocation of $22,982.80 by $40,849.67 totaling $63,832.47; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Health Outreach Manager for Healthy Food and Nutrition will be 
classified as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Public Health Outreach Manager for 
Healthy Food and Nutrition, attached hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and added to the 
LMCHD Classification System; 
 
Section 2. The Public Health Outreach Manager for Healthy Food and Nutrition Classification is 
hereby assigned an hourly rate (Exhibit 1);  
 
Section 3. The Public Health Outreach Manager for Healthy Food and Nutrition Classification is 
hereby assigned as exempt; 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 26 
 

 
 

26 
 
 
 

Section 4. The Public Health Outreach Manger for Healthy Food and Nutrition Classification is 
capped at 40 working hours per week; and 
 
Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to make appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-22 
fiscal year budget.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 
 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 27 
 

 
 

27 
 
 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

Public Health Outreach Manager - Healthy Food and Nutrition 
 
Job Description  
 
To oversee LMCHD’s healthy food and nutrition initiatives, activities and programs including the 
community garden, garden academy, Growing Healthy Pittsburg Partnership and more. This position 
required a strong organizational, planning and communication skills as well as good political acumen.  

Job Responsibilities 

• Community Garden: Tasks include daily management of the LMCHD Community Teaching 
Garden including tool inventory, maintenance and upgrades, processing work requests/orders, 
annual registration, and maintaining community norms and standards; directly supervises garden 
monitor; open two-way communication with garden participants.  

• Garden Academy: Serves as lead instructor and coordinator for garden and nutrition workshops 
and courses including Little Sprouts Garden Academy; liaison between LMCHD and University 
of California Master Gardener Program.  

• Budget: Prepares, administers, and monitors annual budget in consultation with executive 
directory and LMCHD Garden Committee; submits and processes purchase requests.   

• Grants: Responsible for researching and applying for grant and/or partnership opportunities 
under the healthy food and nutrition initiative.  

• Community Capacity Building: Helps the local community develop sustainable capacity among 
trusted community-based organizations, elected officials, and community activists to build a 
culture of wellness within LMCHD’s boundaries.  

• Governance: Prepare, assemble, and distribute Board of Directors meeting agendas and 
supporting documentation; finalize meeting minutes; maintain meeting history files, director 
attendance records and databases; monitor and enforce deadlines for upcoming meeting agenda 
items. ***This will all be done in accordance with public transparency laws including but not 
limited to the Ralph M. Brown Act and Public Records Act.  
 

Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• May support chair of garden committee and/or other related committees.  
• Other duties as assigned.  

 
Reporting 

This position reports directly to the executive director.  

Qualifications  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 28 
 

 
 

28 
 
 
 

• Minimum 3 to 5 years of experience required. 
• A minimum of associates degree in related field.  
• Advanced MS Office Skills. Proficiency or understanding of DocuSign, MailChimp, CANVA, 

preferred but not required.  
• Excellent use of grammar and spelling. 
• Ability to produce accurate, neat, and legible documents. 
• Excellent attention to detail and ability to proofread. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Working knowledge of laser printers, copiers, and fax machines. 
•  Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

 
Hourly Range and Schedule 

$27.96 - $34.30 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is determined by experience.  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
$27.96 $29.43 $30.97 $32.60 $34.30 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 29 
 

 
 

29 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 210129 
 

APPROVING NEW CLASS SPECIFICATION FOR PART-TIME “GARDEN AND FACILITIES 
MONITOR”, ASSIGNING AN HOURLY RATE AND RANGE, AND CLASSIFYING AS AN 

EXEMPT POSITION. 
 

WHEREAS, LMCHD since 2019 has been committed to increasing the effectiveness and 
efficiency of internal administrative services; 
 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has an expressed interest in recruiting and retaining well-qualified 
employees for the delivery of vital healthcare services to district residents;  

 
WHEREAS, LMCHD has appropriated for and approved this current position in the amount of 
$24,382.48, without position classification on June 14, 2021, with the adoption of the Fiscal Year 
2021-22 Budget; 
 
WHEREAS, for internal equity purposes the recommended hourly rate for the Garden and 
Facilities Monitor;  
 
WHEREAS, the approval of this resolution will have a fiscal impact that increases the current 
funding allocation of $24,382.48 by $272.06 totaling $24,654.54; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Garden and Facilities Monitor will be classified as an exempt position.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. The Class Specification and classification of Garden and Facilities Monitor attached 
hereto as “Exhibit 1”, is hereby approved and added to the LMCHD Classification System; 
 
Section 2. The Garden and Facilities Monitor Classification is hereby assigned an hourly rate 
(Exhibit 1);  
 
Section 3. The Garden and Facilities Monitor Classification is hereby assigned as exempt;  
 
Section 4. The Garden and Facilities Monitor Classification is capped at 20 working hours per 
week; and 
 
Section 5. Authorize Executive Director to make appropriate budget adjustment in the 2021-22 
fiscal year budget.  
 
 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 30 
 

 
 

30 
 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District at a regular meeting on 
August 23, 2021.   
 
AYES: Directors:   
NOES: Directors:   
ABSENT:  Directors:  
ABSTAIN: Directors: 
 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________ 
  Patt Young Lee Mason 
  President   Secretary 

 
 

  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 31 
 

 
 

31 
 
 
 

 EXHIBIT 1 
 

Garden and Facilities Monitor 
 
Job Description  
 
To provide general maintenance and support for LMCHD facilities and garden including general labor 
tasks, caring for equipment, pruning, pest and disease management. 

Job Responsibilities 

•  Facilities: Maintains the general cleanliness of garden in all common spaces and pathways (i.e. 
garden shed, barn and greenhouse). Ensures gardeners are within LMCHD policy in relation to 
garden plot upkeep. When necessary, support LMCHD staff with special projects in main office 
spaces like painting, carpet cleaning furniture upgrades, etc.   

• Tools and Supplies: Maintains tool inventory; handles and store all tools properly.  
• Garden: Supports year-round propagation, soil fertility, composting, crop rotation, garden 

planning, pruning, irrigation, and pest and disease management.  
Other Responsibilities and Skills 

• Support Healthy Food and Nutrition Manager 
• Other duties as assigned.  

Reporting 

This position reports directly to Health Food and Nutrition Manager.  

Qualifications  

• Minimum 1 to 2 years of experience required. 
• Some college/technical training and work-related experience. 
• Excellent verbal communication skills. 
• Ability to manage multiple priorities. 
• Strong interpersonal skills and the ability to maintain confidential information. 

Hourly Range and Schedule 

$18.42 - $22.54 an hour. Starting hourly rate placement is determined by experience.  

Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 
$18.42 $19.38 $20.40 $21.47 $22.54 

 

 

 

 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 32 
 

 
 

32 
 
 
 

 

  Contract with Voler Strategic Advisors  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 33 
 

 
 

33 
 
 
 

  

 

 
Rolando A. Bonilla | O: 408-606-3460 | C: 415-987-8025| Rolando@volersa.com  |www.VolerSA.com 

 
 
July 22, 2021 
 
 
 
Mr. Lamar Thorpe 
Executive Director 
Los Medanos Community Healthcare District  
2311 Loveridge Road  
Pittsburg, CA 94565 
 
 
Dear Mr. Thorpe: 
 
Thank you for providing Voler Strategic Advisors with the opportunity to present the Los 
Medanos Community Healthcare District (Herein: the District) with an agreement for services. 
 
Having served public agencies for over a decade, and having a footprint in Contra Costa 
County, Voler Strategic Advisors is well-positioned to enhance your organization’s current 
communications footprint. 
 
By selecting our firm, you will have access to every communications discipline within our 
organization, as we always seek to create an environment of partnership and support. 
 
Again, thank you for the opportunity, and I look forward to continuing the conversation. 
 
 
Respectfully, 

 
 
Rolando A. Bonilla 
Chief Strategy Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Scope of Work 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 34 
 

 
 

34 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Rolando A. Bonilla | O: 408-606-3460 | C: 415-987-8025| Rolando@volersa.com  |www.VolerSA.com 

 
Public Narrative: 
 
As we have done successfully for public agencies throughout the region, we will build a public 
narrative that will position the District for successful coverage in the news media and help build 
support amongst key stakeholder groups.  
 
By continuously highlighting efforts and day-to-day work within an agency, we have helped 
position public agencies into statewide models for communicating with constituents and telling 
stories in order to strengthen the bond between the community and the agency. 
 
By working in coordination with the District’s leadership, we will craft messaging that 
highlights your accomplishments and builds public trust.  We will seek to highlight programs 
and initiatives that help drive the community forward and reinforce the District’s reputation for 
strong fiscal oversight. 
 

Communications Strategy: 
 
Having outlined the process by which we will assist the District in developing an effective, 
proactive message, we also want to outline the vehicles we will utilize to broadcast that 
message.  
 
First, we specialize in presenting news stories to the region’s traditional media outlets and 
developing opportunities where our clients can articulate their message, build their narrative, 
and help shape public opinion. We view each storyline as its own media campaign, where we 
start by developing the appropriate messaging and collateral, and then work to gain traction and 
build momentum for the story within the local and regional media. In instances where the story 
merits statewide or national attention, the strength of our local and regional media campaigns 
will be critical in gaining broader attention.  
 
Second, we will utilize the District’s existing communications tools to strategically disseminate 
our message.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Social Media: 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 35 
 

 
 

35 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Rolando A. Bonilla | O: 408-606-3460 | C: 415-987-8025| Rolando@volersa.com  |www.VolerSA.com 

As soon as our firm is engaged to do so, our team will begin the process of developing content for 
your social media that will help you grow your current audience exponentially. Key to our  
strategy is understanding your multi-lingual and culturally diverse audience to help you truly 
connect with your community. Using information and story ideas provided by the Executive 
Director, as well as coverage in local and regional media outlets, we will design social media 
posts to maximize user interest and engagement. We will also strategically promote select posts to 
highlight the District’s accomplishments and success stories and will provide residents with 
information about high profile upcoming events. In the process, we will reach thousands of social 
media users in your region. 
 
Crisis Communications: 
 
Along with our proactive communications strategy, we always anticipate public relations crises 
to occur. Media inquiries can come at any time, and it is impossible to predict the specific 
nature of those inquiries.  
 
Our firm will be available 24/7 to assist with the development of an effective, coherent response 
to any inquiry or crisis.  
 
District Newsletter: 
 
Voler Strategic Advisors will continue developing and distributing LMCHD’s monthly 
newsletter. 
 
 
Video Production: 
 
On a monthly basis, Voler Strategic Advisors will develop a video for the District. Each video 
will also have a Spanish version of the video produced. 
 
Additionally, when recording each video, Voler Strategic Advisors will develop original video 
content that will be utilized as social media content. 
 
Studies have demonstrated that increasing the utilization of short video clips on social media 
increases both engagement and followers to a page. 
 
 
 
 
 
Agreement Duration 
 
July 1, 2021- June 30, 2022 
 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 36 
 

 
 

36 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Rolando A. Bonilla | !"#$%&'(%(' )$(%#| *"#$+, ' -&. '&%/,| 0123451671289:3;<1=  |>>>;?1289@A;<1= 

LMCHD will have the discretion to extend the agreement for an additional fiscal year (FY 22-23), if it is determined by the 
�D�G�P�L�Q�L�V�W�U�D�W�L�R�Q���W�K�D�W���D�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�D�O���\�H�D�U���L�V���Q�H�F�H�V�V�D�U�\���W�R���D�F�K�L�H�Y�H���/�0�&�+�'�¶�V���J�R�D�O���� 
 
 
Fees 
 
Voler Strategic Advisors will invoice the District with a monthly fee of $6,000 per month. 
 
Conclusion 
 
With our experience in crafting and implementing sustained public relations campaigns, and our 
rooted familiarity with the Los Medanos Community Healthcare District community, our firm is 
extremely well positioned to assist your agency in establishing a robust communications 
infrastructure while also highlighting the incredible work you do. 
!
If the District approves of the above terms, please sign and date below: 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Mr. Lamar Thorpe  
Executive Director  
Los Medanos Community Healthcare District !!!!!



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 37 
 

 
 

37 
 
 
 

 

 

 
!"#$%&"'()'*"%+##$',' !"#$%&'(%(' )$(%#,' *"#$+, ' -&. '&%/,,' 0123451671289:3;<1='', >>>;?1289@A;<1='

#
#

This page is left intentionally blank 



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 38 
 

 
 

38 
 
 
 

!"#$%& '()"%&")%*'*$' '
$+,-,%(.'")/.$0)"%*'(-+"")"%* '

"1"#2*,3"'&,+"#*$+ '
!"#$%&'()*+'&,-%./0&&'&,-%1-"&%23/0&&'&,-45%#$%'.6&%.,6%&,-&0&6%#,-*%.$%*7%89)+%:;%<=<:%1-"&%2>77&?-#@&%
A.-&45%B+%.,6%B&-C&&,%-"&%D*$%E&6.,*$%F*''9,#-+%G&.)-"?.0&%A#$-0#?-;%.%(*)#-#?.)%$9B6#@#$#*,%*7%-"&%H-.-&%
*7%F.)#7*0,#.%1-"&%2A#$-0#?-45%.,6%D.'.0%!"*0(&%1-"&%2>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*045J%
%

+"#,*(.! '
%
45! K,%39/9$-%:<;%<=:L;%-"&%A#$-0#?-%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%$&)&?-&6%D.'.0%!"*0(&%-*%$&0@&%.$%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%
A#0&?-*0%*7%-"&%A#$-0#?-;%.,6%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%.??&(-$%$9?"%&'()*+'&,-J%3??*06#,/)+;%-"&%(.0-#&$%./0&&%
.$%7*))*C$N%
%

(-+"")"%* '
%
65' "7789:;<8'&=:8J%!"#$%3/0&&'&,-%$".))%B&?*'&%0&-0*.?-#@&)+%&77&?-#@&%*,%89)+%:;%<=<:;%.7-&0%#-%".$%B&&,%
&I&?9-&6%B+%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%.,6%69)+%.((0*@&6%B+%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$J%
%
>5% *8?@'A7'"@BCAD@8E:5%O90$9.,-%-*%G&.)-"%.,6%H.7&-+%F*6&%$&?-#*,%
P<:<:1"5;%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$&0@&$%.-%-"&%()&.$90&%*7%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.,6%*,%
.,%2.-%C#))4%B.$#$%.,6%".$%,*%@&$-&6%0#/"-%-*%"#$%&'()*+'&,-%690#,/%-"&%-&0'%*7%-"#$%
3/0&&'&,-;%$9BQ&?-%-*%-"&%-&0'$%.,6%(0*@#$#*,$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%.$%$&-%7*0-"%B&)*CJ%
!"&%-&0'%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%#$%70*'%A&?&'B&0%:;%<=:L;%-*%A&?&'B&0%P:;%<=<<J%
%
F5% &G:;8HI'JAG?H'A7'KA?L5'
%

3J! !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%(&07*0'%-"*$&%79,?-#*,$%.,6%69-#&$%$(&?#7#&6%
H-.-&%).C;%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%Q*B%6&$?0#(-#*,;%.,6%B+%7*0'.)%6#0&?-#*,%*7%-"&%
M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%(&07*0'%$9?"%69-#&$%#,%.??*06.,?&%C#-"%-"&%"#/"&$-%
(0*7&$$#*,.)%.,6%&-"#?.)%$-.,6.06$%*7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%(*$#-#*,J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%,*-%
&,/./&%#,%.,+%.?-#@#-+%C"#?"%#$;%*0%C"#?"%'.+%B&?*'&;%#,?*'(.-#B)&%C#-"%-"&%A#$-0#?-%*0%*77#?&%*7%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0;%.$%(0*@#6&6%7*0%B+%H-.-&%).CJ%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%0&(*0-%6#0&?-)+%-*%-"&%
O0&$#6&,-%*7%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.$%-"&%)#.#$*,%B&-C&&,%-"&%M*.06%.,6%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0J%
%
MJ% !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%#$%.%$.).0#&6%&'()*+&&%*7%-"&%A#$-0#?-J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%
6&@*-&%.((0*I#'.-&)+%R=%"*90$%(&0%C&&S%-*%-"&%69-#&$%6&$?0#B&6%"&0&#,J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%
69-#&$%'.+%0&U9#0&%'*0&%-".,%R=%"*90$%(&0%C&&S;%.,6%'.+%.)$*%#,?)96&%-#'&%*9-$#6&%,*0'.)%*77#?&%
"*90$J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%,*-%B&%&,-#-)&6%-*%.66#-#*,.)%?*'(&,$.-#*,%7*0%$9?"%-#'&J%%

%
FJ% !"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%$".))%&@.)9.-&%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%(&07*0'.,?&%.-%)&.$-%.,,9.))+J%
A90#,/%&.?"%&@.)9.-#*,;%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.,6%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%6&@&)*(%'9-9.))+%
./0&&.B)&%(&07*0'.,?&%/*.)$%.,6%?0#-&0#.%C"#?"%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%$".))%9$&%-*%0&@#&C%-"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%(&07*0'.,?&%#,%-"&%7*))*C#,/%+&.0J%V-%$".))%B&%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%
0&$(*,$#B#)#-+%-*%#,#-#.-&%-"#$%0&@#&C%&.?"%+&.0J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%C#))%B&%.77*06&6%.,%*((*0-9,#-+%
-*%6#$?9$$%&.?"%&@.)9.-#*,%C#-"%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$J%

%



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 39 
 

 
 

39 
 
 
 

AJ% !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%C*0S%.$%.,%#,6&(&,6&,-%?*,-0.?-*0%7*0%*-"&0%*0/.,#W.-#*,$%690#,/%
-"&%-&0'%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%(0*@#6&6%,*%?*,7)#?-X*7X#,-&0&$-%0&$9)-$%70*'%$9?"%C*0SJ%

%
M5' !=C=?DN'O8E87;:H'=EP'$:Q8?'#A@B8EH=:;AE5'
%

(5! O=H8'!=C=?DJ%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%.,,9.)%$.).0+%$".))%B&%*,&%"9,60&6%.,6%7#7-+%-"*9$.,6%
6*)).0$%1Y:Z=;===5%(&0%+&.0%(.#6%#,%&U9.)%$&'#X'*,-")+%(.+'&,-$%-*%B&%'.6&%.-%-"&%$.'&%-#'&%.$%
*-"&0%&'()*+&&$%.0&%(.#6J%

%
O5' )8?;: RO=H8P'!=C=?D',E9?8=H8H5'

%
#J! !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%?*'(&,$.-#*,%$".))%B&%0&@#&C&6%.-%)&.$-%.,,9.))+%.$%(.0-%*7%

-"&%.,,9.)%0&@#&C;%*0%.-%*-"&0%-#'&$%.$%'.+%B&%6&-&0'#,&6%B+%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$;%
#,?)96#,/%7*0%?*'()#.,?&%C#-"%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%&I&'(-%$-.-9$%9,6&0%D.B*0%
F*6&%$&?-#*,%Z:ZJ%

%
##J! V-%#$%9,6&0$-**6%-".-%#-%#$%-"&%#,-&,-%*7%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%-*%#,?0&.$&%$.).0+;%*0%

*-"&0%B&,&7#-$%0&7&00&6%-*%#,%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%690#,/%-"&%-"0&&X+&.0%-&0'%*7%-"#$%
3/0&&'&,-;%6&(&,6&,-%*,%-"&%U9.)#-+%*7%Q*B%(&07*0'.,?&%B+%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%
.,6%-"&%A#$-0#?-T$%7#$?.)%?*,6#-#*,J%

%
#5' 3=9=:;AEN'!;9L'.8=<8N'(P@;E;H:?=:;<8'.8=<8'=EP'JAC;P=DHS5'

%
#J! !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%0&?&#@&%<<%@.?.-#*,%6.+$;%:=%(.#6%"*)#6.+$;%:<%H#?S%

D&.@&%6.+$;%.,6%[%36'#,#$-0.-#@&%D&.@&%6.+$%.,,9.))+J%36'#,#$-0.-#@&%)&.@&%$".))%
#,?)96&%'.,6.-*0+%)&.@&%0&U9#0&6%B+%-"&%G&.)-"+%\*0S().?&$;%G&.)-"+%].'#)#&$%3?-%
*7%<=:R;%D.B*0%F*6&%$&?-#*,%<RZ%&-%$&UJ%

%
##J! !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%?.00+%*@&0%@.?.-#*,%)&.@&%#,-*%-"&%,&I-%+&.0J%

%
&5' J8=C:Q'=EP'+8:;?8@8E:'O8E87;:H5%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%C#))%,*-%B&%&,-#-)&6%-*%.,+%"&.)-";%
C&)7.0&;%*0%0&-#0&'&,-%B&,&7#-$%*-"&0%-".,%-"*$&%C"#?"%-"&%A#$-0#?-%#$%)&/.))+%*B)#/.-&6%-*%(0*@#6&%B+%
@#0-9&%*7%"#$%&'()*+'&,-%1#J&J%C*0S&0$T%?*'(&,$.-#*,%#,$90.,?&;%$-.-&%6#$.B#)#-+%#,$90.,?&;%.,6%(.#6%
)&.@&5J%

%
" J% "TB8EH8HJ%A90#,/%-"&%-&0'%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%-"&%A#$-0#?-%C#))%
0&#'B90$&%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%7*0%"#$%0&.$*,.B)&%*9-X*7X(*?S&-%&I(&,$&$%#,?900&6%#,%?*,,&?-#*,%
C#-"%-"&%A#$-0#?-T$%B9$#,&$$;%#,?)96#,/%-0.@&)%&I(&,$&$;%7**6;%.,6%)*6/#,/%C"#)&%.C.+%70*'%-"&%A#$-0#?-%
*77#?&$J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".));%#,%.66#-#*,;%?*'()+%C#-"%A#$-0#?-%&I(&,$&%(*)#?#&$J%

%
U5' *8?@;E=:;AE'
%

(5! *8?@;E=:;AE'VD'&;H:?;9:'K;:QAG:'#=GH85%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%#$%
.,%.-XC#))%&'()*+&&J%3$%.,%.-XC#))%&'()*+&&;%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%B&%-&0'#,.-&6%
C#-"*9-%?.9$&%C#-"%RZ%6.+$T%C0#--&,%,*-#?&J%
%



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 40 
 

 
 

40 
 
 
 

O5! *8?@;E=:;AE'VD'&;H:?;9:'7A?'#=GH85%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%B&%-&0'#,.-&6%7*0%?.9$&J%V7%
-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%#$%-&0'#,.-&6%7*0%?.9$&;%"&%'9$-%B&%/#@&,%,*-#?&%*7%-"&%?.9$&%.,6%$9((*0-#,/%
&@#6&,?&J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%#$%&,-#-)&6%-*%'&&-%C#-"%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.-%C"#?"%-#'&%-"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%0&()+%*0.))+%.,6^*0%#,%C0#-#,/%-*%-"&%?.9$&%.,6%$9((*0-#,/%&@#6&,?&J%!"&%
'&&-#,/%#$%,*-%.,%&@#6&,-#.0+%"&.0#,/J%!"&0&%#$%,*%0#/"-%-*%.((&.)%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0T$%6&?#$#*,%_%
-"&%6&?#$#*,%#$%7#,.)J%]*0%-"&%(90(*$&$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%7*0%?.9$&%$".))%#,?)96&%.,+%*7%-"&%7*))*C#,/N%
%

#J% 9$&%*7%.)?*"*)%*0%609/$%-".-%#'(&6&$%(&07*0'.,?&%*7%69-#&$`%
%
###J! ?*,@#?-#*,%*7%.%7&)*,+%*0%'#$6&'&.,*0%#,@*)@#,/%'*0.)%-90(#-96&%1.%()&.%*0%@&06#?-%*7%

/9#)-+%*0%.%?*,@#?-#*,%7*))*C#,/%.%()&.%*7%,*)*%?*,-&,6&0&%#$%6&&'&6%.%?*,@#?-#*,%7*0%
-"#$%(90(*$&5`%
%

#@J! .%(0*@&,%?).#'%*7%&#-"&0%$&I9.)%".0.$$'&,-%*0%.B9$&%*7%&'()*+&&$%#,%@#*).-#*,%*7%).C%
*0%.6*(-&6%A#$-0#?-%(*)#?+`%

%
@J! C#))79)%.,6%0&(&.-&6%7.#)90&%-*%?.00+%*9-%-"&%).C79)%6#0&?-#@&$%*0%(*)#?+%6&?#$#*,$%*7%-"&%

M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$`%*0%
%

@#J! C#))79)%.B.,6*,'&,-%*7%-"&%(*$#-#*,%*0%?*,-#,9&6%.,6%9,&I?9$&6%.B$&,?&%70*'%69-+J%
#5! *8?@;E=:;AE'VD'"T89G:;<8'&;?89:A?'7A?'=ED'+8=HAEI'*Q;?:D'&=D'%A:;98'+8WG;?8P5'!"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%-&0'#,.-&%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%7*0%.,+%0&.$*,;%C#-"%-"#0-+%6.+$T%C0#--&,%,*-#?&%
(0#*0%-*%-"&%-&0'#,.-#*,%6.-&J%V7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%6#&$%C"#)&%&'()*+&6%B+%-"&%A#$-0#?-;%"#$%
B&,&7#?#.0#&$%*0%-"*$&%&,-#-)&6%-*%"#$%&$-.-&%$".))%B&%(.#6%.,+%&.0,&6%$.).0+%.,6%.??09&6%)&.@&%.-%-"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%(.+%0.-&%*,%-"&%6.-&%*7%"#$%6&.-"J%

%
X5' $:Q8?'*8?@H'=EP'#AEP;:;AEH'A7'"@BCAD@8E:5'
%

3J% !"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%'.+%70*'%-#'&%-*%-#'&%7#I%*-"&0%-&0'$%.,6%?*,6#-#*,$%*7%&'()*+'&,-%
0&).-#,/%-*%-"&%(&07*0'.,?&%*7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0;%(0*@#6&6%$9?"%-&0'$%.,6%?*,6#-#*,$%.0&%,*-%
#,?*,$#$-&,-%C#-"%*0%#,%?*,7)#?-%C#-"%-"&%(0*@#$#*,%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%.,6%*-"&0%.(()#?.B)&%).CJ%

%
O5! !"&%(0*@#$#*,$%*7%-"&%A#$-0#?-T$%O&0$*,,&)%a9)&$%.,6%a&/9).-#*,$%12a9)&$45%$".))%.(()+%-*%-"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%-*%-"&%&I-&,-%-"&+%&I()#?#-)+%.(()+%-*%-"&%(*$#-#*,%*7%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0;%&I?&(-%
-".-%#7%-"&%$(&?#7#?%(0*@#$#*,$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%?*,7)#?-%C#-"%-"&%a9)&$;%-"&%-&0'$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%
$".))%(0&@.#)J%\#-"*9-%)#'#-#,/%-"&%/&,&0.)#-+%*7%-"&%&I?&(-#*,%,*-&6%#,%-"&%(0&@#*9$%$&,-&,?&;%
"*C&@&0;%,*%(0*@#$#*,%*7%-"&%a9)&$%*0%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%$".))%?*,7&0%9(*,%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%.%
(0*(&0-+%0#/"-%#,%"#$%&'()*+'&,-%*0%.%0#/"-%-*%B&%6#$?".0/&6%*,)+%9(*,%?.9$&J%!"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%
#$%.,%.-XC#))%&'()*+&&%$&0@#,/%.-%-"&%()&.$90&%*7%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.,6%'.+%B&%6#$'#$$&6%.-%.,+%
-#'&%C#-"%*0%C#-"*9-%?.9$&;%$9BQ&?-%*,)+%-*%-"&%(0*@#$#*,$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-J%
%
#5! !"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%$".))%B&%&I&'(-%70*'%(.#6%*@&0-#'&%?*'(&,$.-#*,%.,6%70*'%H*?#.)%
H&?90#-+%-.I&$%*-"&0%-".,%-"&%'.,6.-*0+%E&6#?.0&%(*0-#*,%*7%$9?"%-.I&$J%

%
Y5' #AE7;P8E:;=C;:DJ%M&?.9$&%*7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%&'()*+'&,-%B+%-"&%A#$-0#?-;%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%
A#0&?-*0%C#))%".@&%.??&$$%-*%-0.6&%$&?0&-$%.,6%?*,7#6&,-#.)%#,7*0'.-#*,%.B*9-%-"&%A#$-0#?-;%#-$%(0*69?-$;%
?9$-*'&0$%.,6%'&-"*6$%*7%6*#,/%B9$#,&$$J%A90#,/%.,6%.7-&0%-&0'#,.-#*,%*7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 41 
 

 
 

41 
 
 
 

&'()*+'&,-;%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%'.+%,*-%6#0&?-)+%*0%#,6#0&?-)+%6#$?)*$&%*0%9$&%.,+%$9?"%#,7*0'.-#*,;%
9,)&$$%6#$?)*$90&%C.$%0&U9#0&6%.$%(.0-%*7%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0T$%69-#&$;%C.$%(&0'#--&6%#,%C0#-#,/%B+%-"&%
M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$;%*0%$.#6%#,7*0'.-#*,%#$%.)0&.6+%C#-"#,%-"&%(9B)#?%6*'.#,J%
%
Z5' ,EP8@E;7;9=:;AE5%A#$-0#?-%$".))%6&7&,6;%"*)6%".0')&$$%.,6%#,6&',#7+%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%./.#,$-%
.,+%?).#';%6&'.,6;%Q96/'&,-;%*0%.?-#*,%*7%.,+%-+(&%*0%S#,6%.0#$#,/%C#-"#,%-"&%?*90$&%.,6%$?*(&%*7%"#$%
&'()*+'&,-%-*%-"&%&I-&,-%0&U9#0&6%B+%b*@&0,'&,-%F*6&%$&?-#*,$%c<Z%.,6%LLZJ%
%
4[5' %A:;985%3))%,*-#?&$%.,6%*-"&0%?*''9,#?.-#*,$%9,6&0%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%'9$-%B&%#,%C0#-#,/%.,6%'9$-%B&%
/#@&,%B+%(&0$*,.)%6&)#@&0+%*0%7#0$-X?).$$%'.#);%?&0-#7#&6%*0%0&/#$-&0&6%C#-"%0&-90,%0&?&#(-%0&U9&$-&6J%d*-#?&$%.,6%
*-"&0%?*''9,#?.-#*,$%C#))%B&%6&&'&6%/#@&,%9(*,%0&?&#(-%#7%(&0$*,.))+%6&)#@&0&6;%*0%-"0&&%6.+$%.7-&0%'.#)#,/J%
H9?"%,*-#?&$%.,6%*-"&0%?*''9,#?.-#*,$%'9$-%B&%.660&$$&6%-*N%
%

,7':A'&;H:?;9:\'
%

D*$%E&6.,*$%F*''9,#-+%G&.)-"?.0&%A#$-0#?-%
<P::%D*@&0#6/&%a*.6%
O#--$B90/;%F3%LRZ[Z%
3--&,-#*,N%O0&$#6&,-;%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%
%
,7':A'"T89G:;<8'&;?89:A?\'
%
D*$%E&6.,*$%F*''9,#-+%G&.)-"?.0&%A#$-0#?-%%
3--,N%D.'.0%3J%!"*0(&%
OJKJ%M*I%c[Lc%
O#--$B90/;%F3%LRZ[Z%

445' J8=P;E]H5%!"&%H&?-#*,%"&.6#,/$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%.0&%#,-&,6&6%7*0%0&7&0&,?&%.,6%'.+%,*-%B+%
-"&'$&)@&$%6&-&0'#,&%?*,$-09?-#*,%*0%#,-&0(0&-.-#*,%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-J%
%
465' -A<8?E;E]'.=^5 %!"#$%3/0&&'&,-%#$%/*@&0,&6%B+%.,6%?*,$-09&6%#,%.??*06.,?&%C#-"%-"&%).C$%*7%-"&%
H-.-&%*7%F.)#7*0,#.J%e&,9&%7*0%.,+%6#$(9-&%.0#$#,/%*9-%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%$".))%B&%#,%F*,-0.%F*$-.%F*9,-+J%V7%
.,%.?-#*,%.-%).C%*0%#,%&U9#-+%#$%,&?&$$.0+%-*%&,7*0?&%*0%#,-&0(0&-%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%-"&%(0&@.#)#,/%(.0-+%$".))%B&%
&,-#-)&6%-*%0&.$*,.B)&%.,6%.?-9.)%.--*0,&+$T%7&&$%.,6%?*$-$%C#-"%0&$(&?-%-*%-"&%.?-#*,J%
%
4>5' !G?<;<=C'A7'&;H:?;9:_H'$VC;]=:;AEH5%!"#$%3/0&&'&,-%C#))%B&%B#,6#,/%*,;%.,6%#,90&%-*%-"&%B&,&7#-%*7;%
-"&%&I&?9-*0$;%.6'#,#$-0.-*0$;%"&#0$;%$9??&$$*0$;%.,6%.$$#/,$%*7%-"&%(.0-#&$`%(0*@#6&6;%"*C&@&0;%-".-%&I?&(-%.$%
&I(0&$$)+%(0*@#6&6%#,%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-;%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%'.+%,*-%B&%.$$#/,&6%&#-"&0%B+%-"&%A#$-0#?-%*0%B+%-"&%
>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0J%
%
4F5' K=;<8?5%3%C.#@&0%*7%.,+%*7%-"&%-&0'$%.,6%?*,6#-#*,$%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%$".))%,*-%B&%?*,$-09&6%.$%.%
/&,&0.)%C.#@&0%.,6%&#-"&0%(.0-+%$".))%B&%70&&%-*%&,7*0?&%.,+%-&0'%*0%?*,6#-#*,%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%C#-"%*0%
C#-"*9-%,*-#?&%-*%-"&%*-"&0%,*-C#-"$-.,6#,/%.,+%(0#*0%C.#@&0%*7%-".-%-&0'%*0%?*,6#-#*,J%
%
4M5' "E:;?8'(]?88@8E:5%!"#$%0&(0&$&,-$%-"&%&,-#0&%./0&&'&,-%B&-C&&,%-"&%(.0-#&$J%3'&,6'&,-$%-*%-"#$%
./0&&'&,-%'.+%B&%'.6&%.-%$9?"%-#'&$%.$%.((0*@&6%B+%-"&%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%.,6%-"&%>I&?9-#@&%A#0&?-*0%.,6%
$".))%B&%#,%C0#-#,/J%
%



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 42 
 

 
 

42 
 
 
 

4U5' #AGE:8?B=?:H5%!"#$%3/0&&'&,-%'.+%B&%&I&?9-&6%#,%*,&%*0%'*0&%?*9,-&0(.0-$;%.))%*7%C"#?"%-.S&,%
-*/&-"&0%C#))%?*,$-#-9-&%*,&%.,6%-"&%$.'&%3/0&&'&,-J%
%
4X5' "E7A?98@8E:5%V7%.,+%(*0-#*,%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%#$%6&-&0'#,&6%-*%B&%#,@.)#6%*0%9,&,7*0?&.B)&;%-".-%
(*0-#*,%*7%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%C#))%B&%.6Q9$-&6;%0.-"&0%-".,%@*#6&6;%-*%.?"#&@&%-"&%#,-&,-%*7%-"&%(.0-#&$%9,6&0%-"#$%
3/0&&'&,-J%
'
,%'K,*%"!!'KJ"+"$` ;%-"&%(.0-#&$%"&0&-*%".@&%&I&?9-&6%-"#$%3/0&&'&,-%*,%
H&(-&'B&0%:R;%<=<:%#,%O#--$B90/;%F.)#7*0,#.J%
%
%
%
%
ffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff % % ffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff %
O.--%g*9,/% % % % % % D.'.0%3J%!"*0(&%%
O0&$#6&,-;%M*.06%*7%A#0&?-*0$%
D*$%E&6.,*$%F*''9,#-+%G&.)-"?.0&%A#$-0#?-%%
%
3!!>H!N %
%
%
%
ffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffff %
H&U9*#.%!*"'.,%%
M*.06%F)&0S%%
D*$%E&6.,*$%F*''9,#-+%G&.)-"?.0&%
A#$-0#?-%

 
 
 
 
  



LMCHD Regular Meeting 
September 12, 2021 
Page 43 
 

 
 

43 
 
 
 

 

    !"#$%&'#()&*#+%,*(-#.,*%(

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


